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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPOR

To the Members of Dynasty Medular Furnitures Pvt Lid,

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of DYNASTY MODULAR FURNITURES PRIVATE LIMITED
("the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aferesaid Financial Statements
(“the financial statements™) give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified under Section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit/(loss) including other comprehensive

income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAT’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements find as and the code of ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters _
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our sudit of the Financial

Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial
Statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled
the responsibilities described in the Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Financial

Statements,

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

A. Revenue Recognition

Our audit procedure:
» We assessed the appropriateness of the revenue recognition
accounting policies by comparing them with applicable

¢ The Company’s revenue is principally derived from sale

of Modular Furniture and others products. Revenue from
sale of goods is recognized when control of the products
being sold is transferred to the customer and when there
are no unfulfilled obligations.

* The performance obligations in the contracts are fulfilled
at the time of dispaich, delivery or upon formal customer
acceptance depending on terms of order / contract with
the customer.

» Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable after deduction of any
trade/volume discounts and taxes or duties collected.

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).
Evaluated the process followed by the management for
revenue recognition including understanding and testing of
key controls relaied w0 recognition of revenuwe in correct
period.

Performed substantive testing on samples selected using
statistical sampling of revenue fransactions, recorded during
the year by testing the underlying documents to determine
whether revenue has been recognized correctly.

Tested, on a sample basis, specific revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end date
including examination of credit notes issued afier-the year
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Hence, we identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter since revenue is significant to the financial
statements and is required to be recognized as per the
requirements of applicable accounting framework,

end to determine whether the revenue has been recognized in
the appropriate financial period. and timely. Based on the
above stated procedures, no significant exceptions were
noted in revenue recognition. '

B. Inventory Existence and Valuation

¢ There are complexities and manual process involved in
determining inventory quantities on hand and valuation
of the same due to the diverse & numerous inventory
products and work in progress at different stages of the
processes.

Thetefore inventory quantities and valuation is identified as
a key audit matter,

Our audit procedure:

* We have attended inventory counts, which we selected based

on financial significance and risk, observed management’s
inventory count procedures to assess the effectiveness,
selected a sample of inventory products and compared the
quantities counted to the quantities recorded and ensured
inventory adjustments, if any, are recorded in the books of
accounts.

Assessed whether the management’s internal controls
relating to inventory’s valuation are appropriately designed

and implemented.

¢ Discussed with the management on the management's
process of identifying the stages of completion and valving
work in progress stock at the time of book closure process.

e Verified the correctness of valuation made by the
management on a sample basis, with regard.to the cost and
net realizable value of inventory.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report but does net include the Finaneial Statements and cur auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the miatters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial petrformance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian accounting standards) Rules 2015, as amended from time 1o time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and.estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company ot to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s fimancial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements ¢an arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Finangcial

Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the avdit. We also:

* Ideniify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the-appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to coatinue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We censider
guantilative materiality and qualitative factors (i} in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work:
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also
provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
desctibe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the maiter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in cur report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
l.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of

the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit.
(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement
and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. .
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there under;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Company as on 31% .March, 2023, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March, 2023 from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with reference to
these Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B" to this report;

(g} In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid/ provided by the Company
to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, hence, the question of any
material foreseeable losses does not arise;

iii. There were no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a). The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
cither individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entities, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b). The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c). Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a} and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company enly with effect
from lst April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 is not

applicable.

For NARENDRA SHARMA & CO.
Chartered Acconntants
(Firm Regn Mq. 004983C)

. .
- :

[
(YOGESH GAUTAM)
Partner ' )
Membership Neo. 072676 ;
UDIN : 23072676BGWIHC8571

Place : Jaipur
Date : 23" May 2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements™ section of our report of even date to the
members of DYNASTY MODULAR FURNITURES PRIVATE LIMITED on the Financial Statements for the year ended on

31¥ March 2023.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

M

(it}

(iii)

(iv)

v

Ph..0141-4023476 Mobile: 9829055175 E-mail : ca_ygautam@yahoo.t

In respect of its Property, plant and equipment :
a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of

Property, plant and equipment.

b.  Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management in a phased periodical manner, which
in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. According to
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification,

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the registered sale deeds and lease agreements provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties of land (freehold and/or leasehold), are held in the name of the Company as

at the Balance Sheet date.
d. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e.  There are no proceedings initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules

made thereunder,

a. The management has conducted physical verification of inventory in phased manner at reasonable intervals to
cover all the items during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were

noticed.

b. The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore, sanctioned by banks based on the security of current
assets. The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks
and such statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods, which were not .

subject to audit.

As per information and explanation given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans to compahies covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

a. In respect of loan granted to the body corporate, the terms and conditions of the loans are prima facie not prejudicial 1o
the interest of the company.

b. The terms of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule. The borrower has been regular in the payment of
interest as stipulated.

¢. Asthere is no specified repayment schedule of the loan granted to the body corporate, the clause (iii) (¢) of the

order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees

and securities, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not .

applicable to the Company. / } .
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

{ix)

{x)

{xi)

Ph. : 0141-4023476 « Mobile: 9828055175 » E-mail : ca_ygautam@yaheg..gq@;__

We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the Company pursvant to the rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
{Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the required accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made detailed examination of the records with a view to determine

whether they are accurate and complete.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by

us in respect of statutory dues:
a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,

Empleyees” State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities,

b. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues arrears as at 31st March, 2023 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

a.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and financial institutions.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the _

company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

¢. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the tetm loans were applied for the
purposes for which the loans were obtained,

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used

for long-term purposes by the Company.,

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of
the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not

applicable.

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the company
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate

companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

a. The company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or furher public offer (inctuding debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and hence

reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

a According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the Management and based on
our examination of the books and records of the Company and in accordance with generally accepted auditing
practices in India, no case of material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during

the year.

b. No réport under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed with the Central Gevernment for the period
covered by our audit.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the management
of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year. ™
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(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clavse 3(xii) of the Order is net applicable,

According to the information and explanations given by the management and based on our examination, the transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The Company has
disclosed the details of the related party transactions in the Notes to the Financial Statements, as required by the applicable

Indian Accounting Standards.

a. The Company has an internal audit system manned by in-house internal audit department, which is commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

b. As per the internal audit plan approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, internal audit is performed in a year
in annual/half yearly cycles covering the current financial year and previous periods. We have considered, the internal
audit reports issued during the year under audit and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persens connected with them and accordingly, provisions of Section

192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial year. )

There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabitities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Ditectors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance
Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, Company is not covered under the criteria as specified under
Section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 therefore there is
no requirement for the Company to spend any amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly,
repotting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi} of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements  of
the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report,

For NARENDRA SHARMA & CO.

(YOGESH GAUTAM) ™
Partner ' SR
Membership No. 072676 o

UDIN

:23072676BGWIHC3571 _ ;

Place : Jaipur
Date : 23" May 2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TQ THE INDEPENDENT AUDMTOR’S REPORT

Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DYNASTY MODULAR FURNITURES PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for

the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required

under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial conirols over financial reportlng based on our

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the tisk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evalvating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material mis-statement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls over financial reperting with reference to these Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of Management and Directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial staternents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reperting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

308, Jaipur Tower, Opp. A.LR., M.I. Road, Jaipur - 302001, INDIA\ }/
Ph. : 0141-4023476 » Mobile: 9829055175 + £ E-mail : ca ygautam@yahoo am. '~ ’f

. /




CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

@ Narendra Sharma & Company

Opinion

In [;ur opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adéquate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.

For NARENDRA SHARMA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn fla. 004983C) {

{YOGES
Partner ’
Membership No. 072676 . .
UDIN : 23072676BGWIHCS8571

Place : Jaipur
Date : 23" May 2023
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DYNASTY MODULAR FURNITURES PVT.LTD

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st March, 2023
{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless olberwise stated)
As at As ot
Particulars Noto | 31 march, 2023 | 31 marcn, 2022
A. |ASBETS
1. Non-current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 753.96 620,20
(b) Capital work-in-progress 0,001 124.89
{c) Other Intangible assets 0.00 0.00
{d} Financial Assets
) Investments 5 0.03 0.03
{ii) Loans 6 2.55 2.55
(iiy Others - 7 4.07 407
{e) other non-current assels 0.00 0.00
Total-Non-current assets 760.61 781.75
2,  |Current assets
{a) Inventories 8 787.70 721.33
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 230.54 382.93
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 106.5t 48.34
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 0.00 0.00
(iv} Leans 0.00 0.00
{v) Others 1 39.54 24.65
{¢) Other cument assels 12 19.68 33.74
Total Current assets| 1183.97 1211.00
Total Assets 1944.58 1962.75
B. [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. |Equity
(a) Equity Share’ capital 13 75.61 75.61
{b) Other Equity 14 494.92 416.36
Total Equity 570.53 491.97
LIABILITIES
2. Non-current Liabllities
{a) Financial Liabilities -
(i} Borrowings 15 503.34 644,00
{ii) Other financial liabilities 16 0.00 0.59
(b} Provisions . 17 34.75 3.22
L(c} Deferred tax liablities (net) 18 6.74 7.64
{d) Other non-current liabilities 0.c0 0.00
Total Non current liabllities 544.83 683.45
3. Current Liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 19 441.79 481.03
{ii) Trade Payables 20
- Dues fo Micro and Small Enterprises 6.16 8.69
- Dues to Creditors other than Micro and Smalt 184.36 173.94
{iii) Other financial liabilities 21 33.86 45.26
(b} Other current liabilities 22 107.49 ] 29.68
{¢) Provisions 23 55.74 51.90
{d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 24 {0.18) (3.47)
Total Current liabllitles 829.22 787.32
Total Equity and Liabilities 1944.58 1962.75

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an intagral part of the standatone financial siatements.
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For NARENDRA SHARMA &£ CO. For and on bahalf of of Directors
DYNASTY MOD FURNITU, PVT La
. No. 293C (]c&

_ g (orew.mv DHABRIVA) (HITESH AGRAWAL)
(CA YOGESH GAlTAMS” : Director Director
Pariner ; . Din No. 00519946 Dirt No.00519922

M No. 072676

Place : Jaipur C 4
Date :231d May, 2023 o




- _DYNASTY MODULAR FURNITURES PVT..LTD.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
For the year ended on 31st March, 2023
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
sl. . Note | For the year ended | For the year endad
No. Particulars 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Revenue
I Revenue from Operations 25 2109.42 1451.83
] Other income 26 717 20.30
[} Total Income {I + I} 2118.59 147213
v Expenses
{a) Cost of materiais consumed 27 1144.37 810.44
{b) Purchase of Stock in Trade 28 76.44 24.89
{c) Changes in inventeries of finished goods and stock-in-trade 29 (46.48) 6.76
(d) Employee benefits expense 30 49544 | - 359.84
{e) Finance costs 31 83.04 75.82
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense ' 32 65.90 65.00
(9) Other expenses 33 212.99 142.89
Total Expenses {IV} 2031.69 1499.64
v Profit before Taxes (Il - IV) $4.90 {27.50)
Vi Tax expenses / (credit) 24
{a) Current tax expense for current year 9.37 0.00
(b) Deferred tax (1.52} (3.02)
{c) Previous year tax 0.24 (0.10)
Total Tax 8.09 (3.11)
kil Profit for the pariod [V - V1) 76.81 {24.39)
Vil |other Comprehensive Income {OCI)
item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities 236 3.57
- Income tax relating to tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.61) (0.93)
Other Comprehensive income for the period After Tax 1.74 2.65
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period After Tax (VI + VIII} 78.56 (21.74)
X Earnings per share (of Rs.10/- each): 34
Basic & Diluted 10.16 {3.23}

The accompanying surmmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infermation are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

This is the Standalene Statement of Profit and Loss referred 10 in our report of even dats.
. {

For NARENDRA SHARMA & CO, For and on behaif of the Board of Directors .o
Chartered Accountants DYNASTY MODULAR EURNITURES PVT. LTD. . "
(A
— . kT B
R A ‘\:’N(“" < -
o~ N
(DIGVIJAY DHABRIYA) \(HJTESH AGRAWAL)
Director Dirattor
M. Np. 072676 B Din No. 00519346 Din No. 00513922
Place: : Jaipur

Date :23rd May, 2023




- :DYNASTY.MODULAR FURNITURES PVT..LTD. .

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended on 31st March, 2023
(&1 amaunts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2021 75.61
Changes in equity share capital during the year 0.00
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 75.61
Changes in equity share capital during the year 0.00
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 75.61
B. Other Equity
Other Equity
[Particutars Reserve and Surplus _ Amount
General Resorve Retained Earrning
Account
|Balance as at April 1, 2021 438.11 0.00 438.11
1. Profit for the year 0.00 (24.39) (24.39)
2. Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of income tax 0.00 2.65 2.65
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 0.00 (21.74) (21.74)
3. Gratuity Expenses Provision 0.00 0.00 - 0.00
4. Deferred Tax on Gratuity not provided for earlier 0.00 0.00 0.00
§. Transfer to / (from} Retained earnings (21.74) 21.74 0.00
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 416.36 0.00 416.36
1. Profit for the year 0.00 76.81 76.81
2. Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of income tax 0.00 1.74 1.74
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 0.00 78.56 78.56
3. Transfer to / (from) Retained Eamings 78.56 (78.56) 0.00
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 494.92 0.00 494.92
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Statement of Changes In Equity referred to in pur report of even date. -
For NARENDRA SHARMA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors “
Chartered Acgountants DYNASTY.MODULAR FURNITURES PVT.LTD. LY
Firm Regn, N 004983C // Y g r
R (ndt i A
'- ) {DIGVIJAY DHABRIYA) (;ftTESH AGRAWAL)
(CA YOGESH GAUTAM) Director Director
Din No.00519922

Parther
M. No. 072676

Place : Jaipur
Date : 23rd May, 2023

Din No. 00519946




CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended on 31st March, 2023

Al amounis in INR Lakhs, unless othenmse stated)

CASH FLOW R =

Met Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss Statement

Adjusted for :
Depreciation and amortization expenses

Finance Costs
Interest Income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustement for :

{Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables
{fncrease} / Decrease in Inventories

{Increase) f Decrease in Other Assets

{Decrease) f Increase in Trade Payables
{Decreasa) / Increase in Provisions

{Decraase) f Increase in Other Liabilities

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Direct Taxes paid

MNet cash generated from/{used In) operating activitles - (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for Property, plant and equipment and Capital work in
progress and Investment properties

Interest income

Net cash generated from/{used in} Investing Activities - (B}

ASH Ft OW FRO, TIVITIES
Proceeds from Non-Current borrowings
Repayment of Non-Current borrowings
Proceeds from Issue of share Capital
Net Increase/{decrease) in Current borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash generated from/{used in) financing activities - (C)
Net Increasef{decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

65.90
83.04
(2.18)

84.90

65.00
79.82
{11.88)

146,76

152.39
(86.37)
(0.81)
7.60
7.37
71.64

231.68

13293

(63.78)
(283 45)
144.41
86.57
7.83
29.60

174,81

403.47
(9.79)

393.68

(74.76}

218

105.43

(78.81)

26.62
(3.37)

23.24

(167.58)

11.88

(72.58)

33.00
(173.66)
0.00
{39.24)
(83.04)

Cash j omprises

Cash on hand
Balances with banks

(i} In current accounts

{ii}) In fixed deposit accounts
Total

(262.93}

{155.70)

338.06
(227.77)
0.00
91.25
(79.82)

58.17
48.34

106.51

3

§5.11
47.58

106.51

121.73

{10.73)
59.06

48.34

0.41

o.M
47.81

48.34

The above standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the *Indirect Method® as set out in the Ind AS 7, 'Stalement of Cash Flow"

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of the starklalone financial
statements. This is the Standalone Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For NARENDRA SHARMA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accouptaqts DYNASTY MODULAR FURNITURES PVT. LTD. -
Firm Regn. N a3C PR . N
? . / ; \““‘Q"‘-.‘
TUSH N
S - T L '
A T Uty
~ - ' {DIGVIJAY DHABRIYA) (H}TESH AGRAWAL)
{CA YOGESH GAUTAM) Director Director
Partner Din No. 00519946 Din No. 00519922
M. No. 072676
Place : Jaipur

Date : 23rd May, 2023




Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

1.

2.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Dynasty Modular Furnitures Private Limited {*The Company™) [CIN : U27108RJ1995PTC009339] is a Privaie Limited
Company domiciled and incorporated in India in 1995. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dhabriya
Polywood Limited, whose equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The registered office of the
Company is situated at F-13, Malviya Industrial Area, Jaipur — 302017 (Rajasthan) and having its state-of-art Modular
Furniture Manufacturing unit at Jaipur - Rajasthan. The Company is one of the leading manufacturer & suppliers of
Modular Office Furniture Systems, Modular Kitchen, Wardrobes, Vanities & Doors etc. All the product range of
Company are developed & produced on Save Trees concept without using natural weod.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

BASIS OF PREPERATION AND PRESENTATION

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) read with of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods

presented in the financial statements.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial

instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of cach reporting period.

(iii) Current and non-current classification
The All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the Company’s
normal operating cycle for each of its businesses, as per the criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

(iv) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as

per the requirement of Schedule II1, unless otherwise stated.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are ¢continuously evaluated by the
Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations
of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences
between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialized.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that
date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (INCLUDIG CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS)

On transition to Ind AS the Company had adopted the optional exemption under Ind AS 101 to use the carrying
valee of the Property, plant and equipment as the deemed cost. Subsequently Property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment recognized as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Cost of acquisition or
construction is inclusive of freight, duties, relevant taxes, incidental expenses and interest on loans atiributable to
the acquisition of qualifying assets, up to the date of commissioning of the assets. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing cosls for qualifying assets, upto the date of
commissioning of the assets. All repair and maintenance costs are recoghized in profit or loss as incurred. Assets
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use.

Capital work-in-progress — Assets which are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost comprising
direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written
Down Value Method on the basis of useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013 to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated vseful lives. Depreciation on additions
and deletion during the vear has been provided on pro rata basis with reference to the date of addition and deletion.
The residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at the end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals, if any, are delermined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the statement of profit and loss within othelyeme or other expenses, as applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

L

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment

based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss will be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Provision for impairment will be reviewed periodically and amended depending on changes in circumstances.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown within borrowings in cutrent liabilities in

the balance sheet.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of

business. Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment, if any.

INVENTORIES
Raw materials, Packing Materials, stores, spares & consumables, work in progress and finished goods are stated at

the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials, packing materials comprises cost of purchases,
non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable expenses related to inventories. Cost of raw materials,
packing materials, stores, spares & consumables is determined on 2 first in first out method. Cost of work-in-
progress and finished goods comprises materials and appropriate proportion of atl variable and fixed overhead
expenditures, which is allocated on a systematic basis.

Costs of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
cendition. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts,. if any. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial

year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within twelve months afier the reporting peried. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

BORROWING
Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the botrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is defeired
until the draw down occurs. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Dynasty Modular Furnitures Pvt Ltd




Neotes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

I

BORROWING COST
Borrowing Costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and production of qualifying assets, which

are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognized in Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIARILITIES .

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past
event, for which it is probable that a cash outflow may be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to setile the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money

is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the

amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed after evaluvation of the facts and legal aspects of the maiter involved, in line
with the provisions of Ind AS 37. The Company records a tability for any claims where a potential loss probable
and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For potential
losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosures in the financial statements
but does not record a liability in its financial statements unless the loss becomes probable.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Sale of Goods :- Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractuatly defined
terms of payment, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Sales of products is net of

Goods and Service Tax.

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods nor it exercises effective control over the goods and the amount of
tevenue can be measured reliably. The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on the

tndividual terms of the sales arrangements.

Income from Services: Revenue from sale of services are recognized when services are rendered and related costs
are incurred. Income from services is also net of Goods and Service Tax.

Other Income: Inierest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected [ife of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short Term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months afier the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in
respect of employees” services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the

balance sheet.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified

contributions {o a separate entity, The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund
(PF) and Employee State Insurance (ESI) to the eligible employees. The Company’s contribution is recognized as
employee benefit expenses in Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

Defined Benefit Plans
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan to the employees whoever has completed

five years of service with the Company at the time of retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment or otherwise as per the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Company accounts for
liability of future gratuity benefits bases on an external actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method carried
out annually for assessing liability as at the balance sheet date.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
nosmally recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction. Monetary items
(i.e. liabilities and assets etc.) denominated in foreign currency at the year-end are translated at the functional

currency closing rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any income or expenses on account of exchange difference either on settlement of monetary items or on reporting
these items at rates different from rates at which these were initially recorded / reported in previous financial
statemnents are recognized as income / expense in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate
te acquisition of fixed assets in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

INCOME TAXES
Current Income Tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is
recognized outside profit or loss i.e. in other comprehensive income or equity.

Management periedically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the {ax laws enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to
taxes on income levied by the same goveming tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such
set off. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred
tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or less i.e. in other

comprehensive income.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement;
On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair value. All recognized financial assets are subsequently

measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) depending on the classification of the financial assets. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business medel for managing financial assets.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset

expire or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company
recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do nof constitute a
financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses, if the credit risk on

the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Classification as equity
Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance

with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all

of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognized in statement of profit and foss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they are
classified as fair value through profit or loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognized at fair value
and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective intetest method. Financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest expense are included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item. The
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or (where appropriate} a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or Modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

EARNING PER SHARE )
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the current year attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares
used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average share considered for calculating
basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average number of shares, which would have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at
the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a hater date. The number of equity shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares as appropriate.

OPERATING CYCLE
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and

their realization in cash or cash equivalents; the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as eurrent and nor-current.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

3.

S. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS :
(a) Application of new and revised Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Carporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the standalone financial statements are authorised, have been considered
in preparing these standalone financial statements.

(b) Recent accounting pronouncements
Amendment to Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment to
Ind AS 1 which requires entities to disclose material accounting policies instead of significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information considered together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The amendment aiso
clarifies that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to disclose. If it is disclosed, it should not

obscure material accounting information.

Amendment to Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment 1o
Ind AS 8 which specifies an updated definition of an ‘accounting estimate’. As per the amendment, accounting
estimates are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty and
measurement techniques and inputs are used to develop an accounting estimate, Measurement techniques include

estimation techniques and valuation techniques.

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*“MCA™) vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment to
Ind AS 12, which requires entities to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to

equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. This will typically apply to transactions such as
leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations and will require recognition of additional deferred tax assets

and liabilities.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same o give effect to them as required by law,

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key judgements and estimations concerning the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting petiod that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities in future are ;

(i) Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets :
Useful life and residual value are determined by the management based on a technical evaluation considering nature of
asset, past experience, estimated usage of the asset, vendor’s advice etc and same is reviewed at each financial year end.

(ii) Taxation :

Tax expense is calculated using applicable tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted. In amiving
at taxable profit and all tax bases of assets and liabilities, the Company determines the taxability based on tax
enactments, relevant judicial pronouncements and tax expert opinions, and makes appropriate provisions which
includes an estimation of the likely outcome of any open tax assessments / litigations, if any. Any difference is

recognized on closure of assessment or in the period in which they are agreed,

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation and unused tax credits

could be ufilized.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

5. investments - Non-Current

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, untess ctherwise stated)

As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022 :
Particular No. of Units Amount No. of Units Amount
A, Investmwnt in Equity Instruments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
B. Other Eguity Instruments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
{Unqueted, fuly paid-up shares)
C. Investment In Government Securities
{Unquoted, valued at amorised cost) B
- National Saving Certificates - 0.03 - .03
Total 0.03 0.03
. _Loans - Non-Current {{nsecu 7 Good
As at 31 March,| As at 31 March,
Particularg 2023 2022
Loans to Body Corporates { Cthers 2.55 2.55
Total 2.56 2.58
Z._Other Financial Assets - Non-Current
As at 31 March, | As at 31 March,
Particulars 2023 2022 -
Securlty Daposlts 4.07 4.07|
Total 4.07 4.07
8. Inventories
Particulars As at 31 March, | As at 31 March,
- 2023 2022 i
At Lower of cost or nef realization value :
Raw Materials 584.52 583.94
Packing Materials 5.0% 3.44
Work-in-Progress 114.45 V.80
Finished Goods - Manufactured 39.30 7.94
Finished Goods - Traded 2375 15.71
Gonsumables ltems, Slores and Spare Parts 18.55 12.51
Total 787.70 72133
9. Trade Receivables
As at 31 March, |As at 31 March,
Particulars 2023 2022
Unsecured, considerad good
Trade Receivables 230.54 344.53
Receivables from Rélated Parties 0.00 38.40
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk Q.00 0.00
Total 230.54 382.93

* Trade Receivables are expected to realise at least the amount at which they are stated, if realized in the ordinary course of buginess.

Trade Receivahles Ageing Schedule

Cutstanding for followling periods from due date of payment

As at 31 March, 2023 Less than " & months - 1 -2 years 2 -3 years More Than 3 Total
8 months 1 year Year

(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 134,19 3.2 17.80 11.05 36.29 230.54,
{ii} Undisputed Trade reéceivables — which have significant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.004 0.00
increase in Credit risk

{iii} Undisputed Trade receivables — Credit Impaired* 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
{iv) Disputed trade receivables- Considered good 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
{v) Disputed trade receivables- which have significant 0.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ingreass in Cradit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade receivables — Credit impaired 0.00 0.06 0.00 0.00 0.004 .00

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule

Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment

As at 31 March, 2022 Less than & months - 1-2 years 2 -3 yoars More Than 3 Total

& months 1 vear Year
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 228.15 2279 87.04 22.27 22.68 382.93
(i) Urdisputed Trade recelvables — which have significant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 a.00
increase in Credit risk
{iii} Undisputed Trade receivables — Credit impaired” 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00
(iv) Disputed frade receivables- Considered good 0.00] 0.00 0.00 0.00] 0.00 0.00
(v} Disputed frada recaivables- which have significant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0G .00, .00
increase in Creditrisk |
{vi) Disputed Trade receivables — Credit impaired 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00j

eferppte 15 & 19.

*Above referred Trade Receivables have been pledged as security against certain borrowings of the Con‘rpahy;_'
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 March, 2023

IAR amounts in INR Lakhs, unlass otherwise stated)

10. _Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 31 March,[As at 31 March,
Particulars 2023 2022
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
(a) Cash on hand -y | 0.41
(k) Balances with banks
{i) In current accounts 55.11 o1
{ii) In fixed deposit accounts 47.58 47.81
Total 106.51 48.34

11, Other Current Financial Assets

As at 31 March,

As at 31 March,

Particulars 2023 2022
Balance With Government Authorities 0.35 0.41
Other Advances recovarable in cash 26.17 17197
Security & Other Deposits 13.01 7.08
Total 38.64 .24.66

12. Other Current Assets

As at 31 March,

As at 31 March,

Particutars 2023 2022
Advances {o Suppliers 9.89 24.74
Prepaid & Deferred Revenue Expenses 7.44 570
Other Advances recoverable for value to be received 235 3.30

Total 19.68 33.74

13. Equity Share Capital

As at M1 March, 2023

As at 31 March, 2022

Cutstanding at the end of the period

Partlculars Humbar of Number of
shares Amount in Ra. shares Amount in Rs.
{a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 500000 80.00 200000 80.00
{b) Issued
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 756100 75.61 756100 75.61
{c) Subscribed and fully paid up
- Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 756100 75.61 756100 75.61
{d) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the
beginning & at the end of the reporting period
At the beginning of the period 756100 75.61 756100 75.61
756100 75.61 756100 76.61

{e) Details of shareholdars holding more than 5%

As at 31 March, 2023

As at 31 March, 2022

equity shares in the Company : Numberof | % holdingin | Numberof | % holding in
shares held that class of shares held that class of
shares . shares
M/s Dhabriya Polywood Limited 756100 100.00% 756100 100.00%
{f) Shares held by helding/ ultimate holding company/
o thelr subsidlaries! assonlab 756100 100.00% 756100 100.00%
{g) Detalls of equity shares held by Promoters in the company as at the end of year :
- As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Number of % of total % change Number of % of total % change
shares sharos during the year shares shares during the year

Mis Dhabriya Polywood Limited 756100 100.00% - 756100 100.00% -

{h} Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 105~
Each holder of equity share is entitled o one vote per share and dividend as and when declared by

Cornpany.

In the event of iquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after payment of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number

of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Dymasty Modutar Feniiures P (td




Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March, 2023

(Al amounis in (MR Lakhs, unbass otherwise stated)

14. Other Equity
As at 21 March, | As at 31 March,
Particutars 2023 2022
{A) General Reserves
Balance at the Beglnning of the Year 416,36 438.11
Less : Gratuity Expenses Frovision 0.00 0.00
Add : Deferred Tax on Gratuity not provided for earlier O,Dl}q 0.00
Add: Trangfer from Retained Earnings 78.55 {21.74)
Closing balance 494.92 418.36
{B) Retained Eaming Account
Balance at the Beginning of the Year : 0.00 0.00]
Add: Profit for the year 76.81 (24.2%)
Add: Other Comprehansive Income for the year. net of income lax 1.74 2,65
78.56 {(21.74)
Less : Transfer to General Reserve {78.58) 21.74
Closing balance 0.00 0.00
Total 494,92 418.38

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

{a) General reserve
The general reserve is created on transfer of profits from retained earnings. General reserve is created by transfer from one component of equity to ancther and is

not an item of other comprehensive income.

{b) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss.

15. Borrowings - Non-Current

Particulars -

SECURED - At Amortised Cost —
Term Loan from Banks / Financial Institulions” 473 48 618.97
Less : Cutrent maturities of term loans {166.04) {145.65)
317 .44 473,32

Vahicle Leans™ 28.32 11.05]
Less : Current maturiies of Vehicle loans {11.12) {4.87)
17.20 6.18
UNSECURED - At Amoertised Cost

From Corporates 16.71 1.50
From Directors 152.00 163.00
From Banks & Qthers 0.00 000
168.71 164,50
Total 603.34 544.00

* There is no default in repayment of principal or payment of interest theraon.
** Term Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. is secured against equitable mortgage on the immovable properties of the Company and Term Loan from SIDBI is secured by
the guarantees / security extended by directors of the Company. Total repayment period of the term loans are :

(i HOFC Bank Term Loan {Loan Against Property) of Rs. 100.00 Lakhs taken during the year 2019-20 is repayble in 126 monthly instalments commencing frem
February 2020 and last instaiment due in July 20:30.

(ii) SIDBI Term Loan of Rs. 260.00 Lakhs taken during the year 2015-16 is repayble in 90 monthly instalments commencing from August 2018 and last instalment
dus in January 2024,

{ilij SIDBI Term Loan of Rs. 100.00 Lakhs taken during the year 2018-19 is repayble in 90 monthly instalments commencing from April 2019 and last instalment due
in September 2026,

(iv) SIDBI Term Loan of Rs. 115.00 Lakhs taken during the year 2019-20 is repayble in 90 monthly instatments commencing from March 2020 and last instalment
due in August 2027,

{v) HOFC Bank Machine Term Loan of Rs. §4.7% Lakhs taken during the year 20115-19 is repayble in 60 monthly instalments commencing from August 2019 and
{ast instalment due in July 2024,

(viy HDFC Bank Machine Term Loan of Rs. 65 Lakhs taken during the year 2020-21 is repayble In 60 monthly instalments commencing from August 2020 and last
instalment due in July 2025,

{vil) GECL-TLs of Rs. §5 Lakhs and 65 Lakhs taken from HDFC Bank and SIDBI respectively during the year 2020-21 are repayble in 36 monthly instalments after
availing 12 month moratorium as per the ECLGS of Central Government.

(wiiiy GECL-TLs of Rs. 56.54 Lakhs and 22.50 Lakhs taken from HOFC Bank and Si0DBI respectively during the year are repayble in 36 moanthly instalments after
availing 24 month moratorium as per the ECLGS of Central Gavernment.

=+ Car Loans Taken from banksfinancial institutaions are secured by way of individual hypothecation of the Vehicle purchased from the amcunt of loan.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March, 2023
16. Other Financial Liabilites - Non-Current

[AN amounts in INR Lakhs, unless olharwise stated}

As at 31 March, |As at 31 March,
Particulars 2023 2022
Tradef security depsoits received 0.00. 0.59
Total 0.00 0.69
17. Provisions - Non-Current
As at 31 March, |As at 31 M.
t] mh,
Particulars 2023 2022
Provision for Employsee Benefits ©
Gratuity Provision .75 31.22
Total .75 31.22

18. Deferred Tax Liablities {net)

As ot 31 March, | As at 31 March,

Farticulars 2023 2022
Tax effact of Items constituting deferved tax llabillty : -
Froperty, Plant & Equipments 16.60 16.4%
16.60 16.49
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets ; .
Provision for gratuity 9.86 £.85
9.86 8.85
Not Deferrad Tax Llabillty 6.74 7.64
19. Borrowings - Current
As at 21 March,|As at 21 March,
Particulars 2023 2022
SECURED - At Amortised Cost )
Working Capital Loans From Banks*

Cash Credit Facility 274.83 259.32
Buyer's Credit’SBLC Fachity 8.00 71.20
Current Maturities of Loans From Banks*™

of Tarm Loans 156.04 145.65

of Vehicle Loans 11.12 4.87

Total 431,79 431.03

inventory and book debts, both present and future,

* Cash Credit Limits from HOFC Bank Ltd. are secured against equitable morigage / hypothecation on all the immovable and movable properiies of the Company,

20._Trade Payables

As at 31 March,[As at 31 March,
Particulars 2023 2022
Trade payables
Total Dutstanding dues of Micre and Small enterprises 6.18 8.99
Others 184,36 173.94
Total 190.52 182,93
{i) Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
Quistanding for following petiods from due date of payment

As at 31 March, 2023 Less than 1 1-2 years 2 .3 years More Than 3 Total

year Year )
Total outstanding dues of micro enlerprises and smai 6,186 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.16
enterprises
‘Tolal cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro 182.76 0.80 1.60 0.00, 184.35
anterprises and smak anterprizes
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
enterprises
Disputed dues of credotors other than micra 0.00 0.00 0.00 ¢.00 0.00
anterprises and smail enlerprisas

QOut ding for following perlods from due date of p ent

As at 31 March, 2022 Leas than 1 1 -2 years 2 -3 ysars More Than 3 Total

yaar Year
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 859 0.00 0.00 0.00] 4.99
enterprises
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro 172,22, 1.72 0.00 000 173.94
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and smal 0.00 .00 0.00 Q.00 .00
lenterprises
Disputed dues of credotors other than micro 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
enterprises and small enterprises
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March, 2023
21. Other Financial Liabilites - Current

| AR amounts [n INR Lakhs, umless otherwhe Stated)

As at 31 March,[As at 31 March,

Particulars 2023 2022
Statutory Remittances 835 15.63| -
{Cther Payables 24.51 29.62
Total 33.86 45.26
22. Other Current Liabilites
o artioul Ag at 31 March, | As at 31 March,
ariculars 2023 2022
Credit Balances of Receivables 107.49 ’ 26.58
Total " 107.49 29.68
23. Provisions - Current
As at 31 March,|As at 31 March,
Particulars 2023 2022
Provision for Expenses - 52.56 49.07
Provision for Employee Benafints - Gratuity 3.18 2.82
Total 55.74 51.90
24. Income Taxes
2hlnsome Tax Expenses
As at 31 March, | As at 31 March,
Particulars - 2023 2022 .
Current Tax : i
~ Gurrent Tax 9.37 0.00
- Tax pertaining to earlier years 0.24 {0.10)
IDeferrad Tax {1.52} (3.02)|
Total 8.08 3.1
A reconcilication of income tax exp applicable to nting profit before tax at the statutory Income tax rate to income tax expenses recognized
for the year is indicated below :
. ) For the year For the year
Particul ended onded
culars 31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Profit before tax 84.90 {27.50)
Enacted tax rate in India including suracharge / cass, if any 26 .000% 26.000%
Expected income tax expenses at statutory tax rate 22,08 {7.15)
Tax Impact on account of
Depreciation under incoms tax act (1.44) 51
Expenses allowed only on paymeant basis 1.62 1.44
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits 0.07 0.00
Others (12.96) 0.00;
Tax expenses pertaining to current year 837 0.00
Effaclive Income Tax Rate 11.036% 0.000%
b} Current Tax Liabllity {Net}
As at 31 March, | As at 31 Maich,
Partlculars 2023 2022
Provision for Income Tax” 9.37 0.00:
Less : Advance Tax and TDS 9.55 3.47
Net Provision for Income Tax {0.18) (3.47}
Total {0.18) {3.47)
25. Revenue From Operations
: Forthe year | Forthe year
Particulars endad ended
. 31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Sale of Products {A}
Sale of Products 209867 1450.99
2098.67 1450.99
Sale of Sorvices (B}
installation and Fixing Income 1075 0.85
Total{A+B) 2109.42 1451.83
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 March, 2023

(AN amvounts ln INR Lakhs, Unless atherwise sistad)

Dizaggregate revenus Information

For the year For the year
Particulars snded onded
31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
|Revenue by product type :
Modutar Funitures 209867 1450.99
Revenue from sale of services 10.75 0.85
Total 2109.42 1461.83
Revepue by Geouraphy :
Domastic 210942 1451.83
Exports 0.00 0.00
’ Total 2109.42 1451.83
hue by time : .
Revenue recognised at point in time 2109.42 1451.83
Total 2109.42 1461.83
26. Other Income
For the year For the year
Particulars onded snded
31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Interas! Income 2.18 11.88
Foreign Exchange Gains {Net} 4.94 B.42
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.08 0.00
Total 747 20.30
27, Cost of Material Consumed
For the yoar For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Inventory of Materlals and Stock-in-Process at the beginning of the year 685.18 394,98
Add: Purchases of Materials during the year 1164.26 1100.65
1849 44 148562 | -
Less: Inventory of the Materials and Stock-in-Process at the end of the year 705.07 68518
Total 1144.37 810.44
28. Purchase of Stock in Trade
For the year For the year
Farticulars ended endod
- 3 March, 2023 | 39 March, 2022
Purchase of Trading Goods 76.44 24,89
Total 76.44 24,89
29. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Stock in Trade
) Forthe year | For the year
Particulars ended endad.
) . 31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Inventories at the end of the year.
Finished Goods - Manufactured 39.30 7.94
Finished Goods - Trading 23.78 15.71
Stores & spare Parts 19.55 12,51
TOTAL 8263 36.15
Inwventories at the beginning of the year: i
Finished Goods - Manufactured 7.94 13.98
Finished Goods - Trading 15.71 16.42
Stores & spare Parts 12.51 12.51
TOTAL 36.15 42.51
Net (increase) / decrease {46.48) 6.78
30, EI’I‘IEIO!G&S Benefit Exgense
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended -
31 March, 2023 { 31 March, 2022
Salary, Wages and Bonus etc to Employees 405.29) 2798.00
Contributions to Provident Fund 7.84 9.41
Remuneration to Directors 72.00 72.00
Gratuity ) 7.95 7.48
Staff Welfare Exp 237 1.85
Total 495.44 369.84
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2022

31. Finance Cost

{All amounts in INR Lakhs, umniless otherwhe stated)

. For the year For the year
Particulars ended ¢ ended .
3 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Interest expense 77.81 76.55|
Bank Charges & ather financial charges 5.23 327
Total 83.04 | 79.82
32. Depreciation and Amortization Expense
- . Forthe year | Forthe year
Particulars onded - ended
3 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipmant £65.90 65.00
Total §6.50 §5.00
33. Other Expenses
For the year For the year
Particulars ended " ended
- 31 March, 2023 | 21 March, 2022
Manufacturing Expenses
Power & Fuel 29,57 2543
Repalir & Mainlanance of Plant & Machinery 41.88 24.96
Electrlc Repair and Maintinance 478 3.5
Cayriage inward 8.08 671
Factory Expenses 7.00 4.89
Water Charges 1.38 1.10
Instailation & site work charges 27.82 B.23
Expenses for Export - 4.76 0.00
Expensas for Import of Raw Material 0.00 0.37
125.28 75.22
Office & Administrative Expenses
Payment to Auditors
As Auditor
Staturcty Audit Fee .43 0,25
Insurance expenses 2.52 2.92
Internet & Website Expenses 0.18] 0.02
Legal & Professional expenses 1.00 1.20
Conation 0.50 0.1
Fostage & Telegram Expenses 1.35 1.33
Printing & Stationary 173 1.08
Registration and filling fee 0.90 077
Rent Rate and Tax 13.06 13.43
Computer Repair & Maintenance -1.23 0.58
Software Expenses 0.14 0.14
Building Repair & Maintenance KAL) 2.05
Subscription & Membership Fee 0.05 023
Telephone & Postage expenses 0.85 0.83
Conveyance & Site Expenses 9.45 B.56
Vehicke Running & Maintenance 3.30 3.1
40.42 34.50
Seiling & Distribution Expenses
Advertisement & Sales Promotion Expenses 10.19 10,48
Traveling Expenses 10.90 5.63
Carriage Outward 18.42 16.46
Commission on Sales - 552 0.00
Tender Expenses 0.54 .14
Discount Allowed 073 0.48,
47.30 a3.i8
Total 212.99 142.89
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the yem' ended 31 Moﬂ.‘h, 2023 (Allamounts in INR Lakhs, unbess otherwise stated)

34. Earning Per Share

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
{a) Net Prefit after Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 76.51 . {24.39)
{b) Net Profit available to Equity Shareholders 76.81 (24.39)
(¢} Number of equity shares at year end 756100 756100
{d) Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 756100 756100
{e) Basic / Dituted Eaming per Share (b)/{(d) - in INR 10.16 {3.23)
(f) Face value per equity share - in INR 10.00 10.00
35. Employee Benefits
a) Contribution to Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance
Cantribution to Defined Contiibution Plans, recognized as an expenses for the year is as under :

: For the year ended For the year ended
Particutars : 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Employer's contribution to provident fund (includes pension fund) 7.84 ) 9.41
Employer's coniribution to Employees State Insurance 3.60 2.93

b} Gratuity

The foliowing table summarizes the components of expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amounts recognized in the Balance
Sheet according to Actuarial Report

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

1. Amounts Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

a. Current Service Cost 548 : 515

b. Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation 2.47 233

¢. Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00
Total amount included in "Employee Benefit Expense” (Note 30} 7.95 7.48

2. Amounts Recognized in other comprehensive income (QOCI)

a. Net comulative unrecognized actuarial Losses/ (Gains) opening 0.00 0.00

(2.368} - (3.57)

o. Net Aciuaral Losses/ ((Gains) Recognized in Year
Unrecognized actuarial Losses/ {Gains) for the year {2.36) (3.57
3. Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet

a. Present Vafue of Unfunded Obligations 37.93 34.05
Net Liability 37.93 34.05
b. Net Liability is bifurcated as follows:
Current 3.18 2.83
Non Current 34.75 3.22
Net Liability 37.93 34.05
4. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations
a. Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 34.05 32.09
b. Current Service Cost 548 515
c. Interest Cost 247 23
(2.36) (3.5

d. Actuarial Losses/ (Gain}

e. Past Service Cost - recognized th. Reserve 0.00 0.00

f. Benefits Paid (1.71) (1.95)
g. Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 37.83 34.05

5. Actuarial Assumptions of the defined benefit obligations

a. Discount Rate {p.a.) 7.50% 7.25%
b .Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 6.00% 6.00%
6. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations -

0to 1 Year 3.18 2.83

1102 Year 1.57 0.52

2to 3 Year 1.02 1.38

3to 4 Year 0.58 0.88

4to 5 Year 0.72 0.50

5 Year cnwards 30.86 27.04

36. Segment Reporting

tn accoidance with para 4 of Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, since the company operates in one segment of activity viz. Modular Furniture therefore
no separate segment reported. .
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

{Adl amounts in INR Lakhs, unless othérwise stated)

37. Contingent Liabilities

Particulars Ag at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
a) Perfonance Bank Guarantees given to third parties for 82.03 257.93
contractual obligations
38. Related Party Disclosures
a) Related Parties and their relationship
I. Holding Company
* Dhabriya Polywood Limited
II. Key Management Personnels
* Mr. Digvijay Dhabriya, Director
* Mr. Hitesh Agarwal, Director
*  Mr. Shiv Shankar, Independent Director
HI. Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnels are able to exerclse significant influence / control :
* Polywoced India Limited
* Polywood Green Building Systems Pvt. Lid.
*  Polywood Profiles Pvt, Ltd.
b) Transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 March, 2023
" Enterprises over which KMP |
Nature of Transactions Holding Company exerclze significate influence Koy Ma:age:’nent Personnel
: 1 control and their relatives .
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021.22 2022-23 2021-22
Remuneration to Key Management Personnels 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 72.00 72.00
Salary to employees 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 6.30 8.58
Interest Payment 0.00 0.00 6.01 0.23 0.00 0.00
Interest Received 0.00 9.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sales of Goods 151.74 212.35 0.26 0.00 0,84 (.00
Purchase of Goods 29.82 174.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment 217 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance as at 31st March
Long Term Borrowing 0.00 0.00 6.71 1.50 152.00 163.00
Provisions - Current 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 4.58 712
Cther Financial Liabilities Current 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.39 0.00
Trade Receivables 0.00 38.40 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00
Trade Payables 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
39. Financial instruments

C. | Rigk Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Campany manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in the financiai condition and the requiremenis of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders

{buy back its shares) or issue new shares.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims 1o ensure lhat it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing foans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. The Company has complied with these covenants and
there have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, interest beanng loans and borrowings
less cash and cash equivelents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars As at 3t March, 2023 As at M March, 2022 -

Long term borrowings 503.34 544,00
Current maturiteis of long term debt 0.00 0.00
Short term borrowings 441,79 481.03
Less ; Cash and cash eqguivalents {106.51) {48.34)
Less : Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 0.00 0.00
Net Dabt 838.63 1076.69
Total Equity 570.53 491.97
Gearing Ratio 1.47 2.19
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

(All amcunts kn INR Lakhs, unless otherwisa stated)

es of financial instrumen
: As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022

Particulars

Carrying Value | FairValue |Carrying Value| Fair Value
Financial Assets
Measured at amortised cost
Loans 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55
Other Financial Assels 43.61 43.61 28.73 28.73
Trade Receivables 230.54 230.54 382.93 382.93
Cash and Cash equivalents 106.51 106.51 48.34 48.34
Won current investment 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03
Total Financial Assets at amnortised cost {A) 383.24 383.24 482.58 462,58
Measured at Falr Value through other comprehensive income {B) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Measured at fair value through profit and loss { C) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Financial Assets (A+B+C) 383.24 383.24 462.58 462.58
Financial Liabilities ~
Measured at amortised cost
Long Term Borrowings 503.34 503.34 644.00 644.00
Short Term Borrowings 441.79 441.79 451.03 481.03
Trade Payables 190.52 190.52 182.93 182.93
Other Financial Liabilities 33.86 33.86 45.35 45.85
Total Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost 1169.51 1169.51 1353.80 1353.80

¢. Financial Risk Management ¢bjects and policies

In its ordinary operations, the company’s activilies expose it to the various types of risks, which are associated with the financial instruments and
markets in which it operates. The Company has a risk management policy which covers the foreign exchanges risks and other risks associated with the
financial assets and labilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors. The

following is the summary of the main rigks :

Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wifl fluctuate because of the change in the market prices. The
Company is exposed in the ordinary course of ils business to risks related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and

interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabllities to changes in market rates of interest. The Company is exposed 1o intarest
rate risk arising mainly from long term borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company is exposed o interest rate risk because the cash flows
associated with floating rate borrowings will fluctuate with changes in interesi rates. The Company manages the interest rate risks by entering into

different kinds of loan arrangernents with varied terms.

Atthe reporting data the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022

Financlal Assets

Flxed Rate

Security Daposit 0.00 0.00

Bank Deposit 47.58 47.81
Total 47.58 47.81

Financial Liabilitles

Fixed Rate

Term Loans 6570.50 794.51

Varlable Rate Instruments

Loan repayable on demand 274.63 330.51
Total 945.13 -1125.03

Interest rate sensitivity : The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings,

as follows:

Particulars - As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
0.5% Increase in Rate - Loan repayable on demand ; :
Impact on P&L (1.37} {1.65)
0.5% Decrease in Rate - Loan repayable on demand :

Impact on P&L 1.37 1.65

Eorejan Curroncy Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign cursency transactions, primarily with respect to the USD related to the imports of
its raw material and capital assets. Foreign exchange risk arises from future oemtrrarclai transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated
in & currency that is not the Company’s functional currency {INR). Fomngn wfrenoy - posures that are not hedged by derivative instruments
outstanding as on the batance sheet date are as under: - g

Derivative cutstanding as at the reporting date - Nil
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Particutars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date :

[All armounts in INR Lakhs, unkss otherwise stated)

(Value in INR in Lakhs)

Financlal Assets

Financial Liabilities

Partlculars As at 31 March,] As at 31 Asatd As at 31
2023 March, 2022 | March, 2023 | March, 2022

UsD 0.00 18.50 0.00 0.00

EURO 30.13 0.00 0.00 71.58

Forakgn Currency sensitivity

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2023

As at 31 March, 2022

USD Sensitivity - Impact on Profit Before Tax

Appreciation in INR by 1% 0.00 {0.20)
Depreciation in INR by 1% 0.00 0.20

EURO Sensltivity - Impact on Profit Before Tax

Appreciation in INR by 1% {0.30) 0.72

Depreciation in INR by 1% 0.30 {0.72)

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contraciual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Comparty, Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of credit worthiness as well as concentration risks.

Company's credit risk arise principally from the trade receivables and advances. Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the Company and subject
to established policy, procedures and control relating to the customer credit risk management, Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on
financial position, past performance, business/economic conditions, market reputation, expecied business etc. Based on that credit iimit and credit
terms are decided. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas with no significant concentrations of credit risk. The outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored

and appropriate action is taken for collection of overdue recaivables.

Liquidity Risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continucusly menitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Expected contractuat maturity for financial liabilities :

Particulars- Less Than 1 1t0 8 yqars Mors than 5 Tota_l
year - Yyoars -

As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings 441.79 471.43 3to 045,13

Trade and Other payables 190.52 0.00 0.00 190.52

Other Financial Liabilities 33.86 0.00 0.00 33.86

Total 666.17 471.43 31.91 1169.51

As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings 481.03 558.89 55.11 112503

Trade and Other payables 182.93 0.00 0.0 182.93|

Other Financial Liabilities 45.85 .00 0.00 45.85

Total 709.80 588.89 55.11 1353.80

40. Details of Dues to Micro Enterprises and sinali Enterprises

Based on and to the exient of information available with the Company under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED

Act), the relevant particulars as at reporting date are furnished below:;

Particulars As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Principal amount due to suppiiers as at the end of the year 6.16 8.99
Interest accrued and due to suppliers on the above amount as at the end of the year 0.00 0.00
The amount of Interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 20086, Q.00 0.00
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the

accounting year. -

The amount of Interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment (which have 0.00 0.00
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year } but without adding the interest

specified under the MSMED ACt, 2006

The amoeunt of interest accured and ramaining unpaig at the end of each accounting year 0.00 0.00
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 0.00 .00
such date when ihe inlsrest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the

purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Total 6.16, 8.99
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected and
received by the Management for the respective year. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Dynasty Madufar Furnitures Pyt Ltd




Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

41. Specified ratios as per schedule lll Requirements

(Al atmounts in INR Lakhs, unlass otherwise statad)

As at :
As at Change
P Numarator Denominator -
articulars MarehSlr [Maren31,2022)  in%
Current ratio (in fimes) Current assets Current liabilties 1.43 1.54 -7%
Debt-equity ratio (in times) Non-current borrowings + | Total Equity 1.47 2.19 «33%
Current borrowings - Cash
and cash equivalents
et service coverage ratic {in imes) Eamings before Interest,  |Finance cost for the year + 0.93 0.51 84%
Depreciation and Tax Principal Repayment of long term
debt llabilities within one year
inventory turnover (in times} Revenue from operations  [Average inveniories 1.84 1.54 19%
Trade receivable turmover ratie {in imes) Revenue from operations |Average trade receivables 5.00 288 B7%
Trade payabie turnover ratio (in imes) Cost of goods sold ** Average trade payables 6.96 6.57 6%
Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations |Working capital [Current 595 3.43 74%
assets - Current
liabilities]
Net profit ratio (in %) Profit after tax Revenue from operations 3.64% -1.88% -317%
Return on capital employed (in %) Eamings before interest  |Capital employed = (Average of 10.72% 3.43% 213%
and taxes + provision for  [Equity and total borrowings)
impainment in the value of
investments
Return on equity (in %) - Prafit after tax Average of tota) equity 14 .46% 4 B5% -308%

** Cost of Good sold = Cost of materials consumed +Purchases of stock-in-trade + Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in- trade +

Manufacturing and operating expenseas,

{) Debt Equity ratio {times): Decreased due to the repaymant of borrowing and increased in the profitability.
(ily Debt service coverage ralio (times): Increased due to increase in the profitability.
(ili} Trade Receivable Turnover ratio {times): Increasad due to the increase in the sales Volume and better realization from debtors
{iv) Net Capital Turnover ratio {times): Increased due to the increase in the sales Volume.

(v} Met Profit ratio (%): Increased due 1o the protitability in current year agaisnt the loss in previous year

{vi} Return on capital employed ratio (%): Increased due to increase in the sales volume and increase in the profitability.

(vii) Return on Equity (%): Increased due to increase in the sales volume and increase in the profitability.

42. Other Notes

(a) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami

property.

{b) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off,
(c) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROG beyond the statutory period,
{d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(e) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entifies (Intermediaries) with

the undersianding that the Intermediary shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Uttimate

Beneficiaries) or

{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{ The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or enti

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Uitimate Beneficiaries) or

{ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
{g) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thal has been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or surve

Act, 1961,

{(h) Company does not have any long-term contract including derivative contract for which there are any material forseable losses.
(i} There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.
(i) Previous year figures have been reworked, regroupad, rearragnad and reclassified, wherever necessary.

{k} All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as

amended) till the standalone financial statements are authorised, have been considered in preparing these standalone financial statements,

ty{ies). including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding {whether

y or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax

{1y All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have bean rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of schedule Il

unless otherwise siated.

(m) Certain amounts that are required to be disclosed and do not appear due to rounding-off are expressed as “0.00".

43. Approval of Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 March, 2023 {Allamounts In INR Lakhs, unless atherwise stated]

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd May, 2023.

For NARENDRA SHARMA & CO. For and on behaif of the Board of Directors -
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